From: Ortiz, Raho N. (IHS/HQ)

To: IHS National Business Office Committee

Cc: ORAP

Subject: IMPORTANT NOTICE TO ALL IHS BUSINESS OFFICES - MEDICARE TELEHEALTH FLEXIBILITIES SET TO EXPIRE
TODAY 9/30/2025

Date: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 2:49:00 PM

Importance: High
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IHS National Business Office Committee,

Unless Congress passes further legislation, the Medicare telehealth flexibilities that were extended
through September 30, 2025, will expire today. These changes do not impact telehealth payments
from Medicaid or private insurance (although some payers may follow suit).

Starting tomorrow, October 1, 2025, Medicare telehealth payment requirements will revert to pre-
pandemic rules.

Some of the Medicare telehealth flexibilities that are expiring:
® Patient’s home as an originating site and certain geographic waivers.
® FExpanded Medicare clinician eligibility.
® FQHC/RHC as distant-site telehealth providers for Medicare patients.
® Audio-only allowances (relevant for non-behavioral telehealth).

® Hospital-at-Home waiver authority.

Changes if Congress does not act:

® Geographic restrictions return: Medicare will no longer cover most telehealth services for
patients in urban areas. The patient must be in a qualifying rural area to receive coverage.
(When a patient receives general medical telehealth services, the originating site (where the
patient is located) must either be:
® |ocated in a Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) as designated by the Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).
® |ocated in a county outside a Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), as determined by
the United States Census Bureau.
® Originating site limits return: For most services, a patient's home will no longer be a valid
"originating site" for a telehealth visit. With some exceptions, the patient must be at an
approved medical facility, such as a doctor's office or hospital, or in a qualifying rural area.

® Expanded eligible practitioners: The temporary eligibility for certain providers, including
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physical therapists, occupational therapists, speech-language pathologists, and audiologists,
will end. These providers will no longer be able to bill Medicare for telehealth services.

® Audio-only communication: Broad coverage for audio-only telehealth services will end, with
some exceptions. Limited exceptions may apply for patients unable to use or consent to video
technology.

® Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) and Rural Health Clinics (RHCs): These facilities

will no longer be able to act as distant site providers for general medical telehealth services.
Some telehealth provisions that were permanently extended will remain in place after today:

The patient's home is a permanently allowed originating site for Mental and Behavioral health
services. These services (including audio-only) remain permanently covered for patients in their
homes, regardless of their location. However, starting October 1, an in-person visit with the provider
is now required within six months prior to the first telehealth mental health service, and at least
once every 12 months thereafter, with some exceptions

Substance use disorder: Services for substance use disorder (SUD) are also permanently covered via
audio-only communication.

End-Stage Renal Disease (ESRD): Home dialysis-related monthly visits can still be done via
telehealth.

Acute stroke care: Telehealth services for the diagnosis and treatment of acute stroke are covered
regardless of the patient's location.

For further information, please consult this website: www.Telehealth.hhs.gov. Under the section for
Providers, click on Billing for Telehealth.

Please send any questions.
Thank you,

Raho

Raho Ortiz, J.D.

Director

Division of Business Office Enhancement
Office of Resource Access and Partnerships
IHS Headquarters

5600 Fishers Lane

Rockville, MD 20852
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